
Coral Springs 
Improvement District 

Agenda 

December 16, 2019 

Agenda Page 1



               

Coral Springs Improvement District 

10300 NW 11th Manor, Coral Springs, Florida • Phone: 954.753.0380 • www.csidfl.org 

 
December 9, 2019 
 
Board of Supervisors  
Coral Springs Improvement District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement District will 
be held on December 16, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. at the District Offices, 10300 NW 11th Manor, Coral 
Springs, Florida.  Following is the advance agenda for the meeting.   
 

1. Roll Call 
2. Approval of the Minutes of the November 18, 2019 Meeting 
3. Audience Comments 
4. Approval of Financial Statements for November 19, 2019  
5. Consideration of Permits and Variances 

A. Permit #2019-6 - 600 N. University Drive 
B. Permit #2020-1 – MCI Metro for Canal L-102 and Sawgrass 

6. Public Hearing to Consider Modification to Water and Sewer Utility Rates for Broward 
County School Facilities, Resolution 2020-5 

7. Consideration of Hold Harmless and Indemnification Agreement for Waiver from District 
Canal Bank Standards 

8. Consideration of Work Authorizations 
A. Work Authorization #170 for Sulfuric Acid Bulk Tank Cleaning and Inspection for a 

Total of $56,023, Including a $10,000 Allowance 
B. Amendment #1 to Work Authorization #137 for Improvements to HSP #1 and #2 for a 

Decrease of $5,000 
9. Staff Reports 

A. Manager – Ken Cassel 
B. Engineer – Rick Olson 
C. Department Reports 

• Operations – Dan Daly 
➢ Utility Billing Work Orders 

• Utilities Update - David McIntosh 

• Water – Joe Stephens  

• Wastewater – Kenneth Miller  

• Stormwater – Shawn Frankenhauser  

• Field – Curt Dwiggins  

• Maintenance Report – Pedro Vasquez  

• Human Resources – Jan Zilmer  

• Motion to Accept Department Reports 
D. Attorney 

10. Supervisors’ Requests 
11. Adjournment 
 
 

Agenda Page 2



               

Coral Springs Improvement District 

10300 NW 11th Manor, Coral Springs, Florida • Phone: 954.753.0380 • www.csidfl.org 

 
Any supporting documents not included in the agenda package will be distributed at the 
meeting.  If you have any questions prior to the meeting, please contact me. 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 

Kenneth Cassel/sd 
District Manager 
 
cc: District Staff   
 Terry Lewis  
 Seth Behn     
 Rick Olson 
 Beverley Servé 
 Stephen Bloom  

Agenda Page 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Second Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 4



Unapproved Minutes 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

CORAL SPRINGS 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 The regular meeting of the Coral Springs Improvement District was held Monday, 

November 18, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. at the District Office, located at 10300 NW 11th Manor, 

Coral Springs, Florida. 

 
 Present and constituting a quorum were: 

 
 Martin Shank     President 
 Len Okyn     Secretary 
 
 Also present were: 

 Kenneth Cassel    District Manager 
 Terry Lewis     District Counsel 
 Dan Daly     Director of Operations 
 David McIntosh    Director of Utilities 
 Marta Rubio     District Accountant 
 Jan Zilmer     Human Resources 
 Rick Olson     District Engineer 
 Curt Dwiggins    Field Department 
 Joe Stephens    Water Department 
 Tom Kedrierski    Wastewater Department 
 Shawn Frankenhauser   Stormwater Department 
 Pedro Vasquez    Maintenance Department 
 Troy Lynn     GlobalTech 
 Glen Hanks     Hanks & Associates 
 Residents 
 
 The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the 

November 18, 2019 Coral Springs Improvement District’s Board of Supervisors 

Meeting. 

 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS   Roll Call 
 Mr. Cassel called the meeting to order, and called the roll. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 5



November 18, 2019   Coral Springs Improvement District 

2 
Unapproved Minutes 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the 
October 21, 2019 Meeting 

   

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, the Minutes of the October 21, 2019 Meeting were 
approved. 

 
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS   Audience Comments 

Installation of a dock at the Iaderosa property was addressed. 

• The dock policy was discussed. 

• If there is a hurricane warning, the boat may be removed from the canal at 

the property owners’ cost. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, installation of a dock at the Iaderosa property was 
approved subject to the fact the dock may be removed from 
the canal in the event of a hurricane at the property owners’ 
cost. 

 
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Financial Statements for 

October 2019 
 The Board reviewed the Financial Statements for October 2019. 

• The amount in Field, belongs to both Field and Plant. 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, the Financial Statements for October 2019 were 
approved. 

 
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Budget 

Amendments 
A. Resolution 2020-2, Amending General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 

2018 – 2019 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2020-2, Amending the General Fund Budget 
for Fiscal Year 2018 – 2019 was adopted. 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 6



November 18, 2019   Coral Springs Improvement District 

3 
Unapproved Minutes 

B. Resolution 2020-3, Amending General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 
2019 – 2020 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2020-3, Amending the General Fund Budget 
for Fiscal Year 2019 – 2020 was adopted. 

 
C. Resolution 2020-4, Amending Water and Sewer Budget for Fiscal Year 

2018 – 2019 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2020-4, Amending the Water/Sewer Fund 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2018 – 2019 was adopted. 

 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Encroachment Policy Consideration 
 This item was approved under Audience Comments. 

• This item must be approved by the District Engineer. 

• Mr. Lewis will draft a letter regarding removal of the boat when there is a 

hurricane warning. 

Mr. Glen Hanks briefed the Board regarding 600 North University Drive. 

• There have been numerous exchanges with the developer. 

• They will likely have to come back to the Board to request a variance for the 

property. 

• The applicants have confirmed they are not going to be able to achieve the 

necessary storage.  It is up to them to propose a solution. 

 
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of LMK Change Order 

#1 for Lift Station #2 Reducing the 
Original Project Cost of $736,575 by 
$92,458 for a Net Project Cost of 
$644,117 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, LMK Change Order #1 for Lift Station #2 Reducing the 
Original Project Cost of $736,575 by $92,458 for a Net Project 
Cost of $644,117, was approved. 

 
 
 

Agenda Page 7



November 18, 2019   Coral Springs Improvement District 

4 
Unapproved Minutes 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Purchase of a Chevy 
Silverado 2500 Long Bed Truck from 
Alan Jay Fleet Sales, Piggybacking 
Off the Florida Sheriff’s Association 
Contract FSA19-VEL27.0 

• Cruise control is a standard specification for the truck. 

• The bottom line cost is $39,285. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, purchase of a Chevy Silverado 2500 Long Bed Truck 
from Alan Jay Fleet Sales, piggybacking off the Florida 
Sheriff’s Association Contract FSA19-VEL27.0 in the amount 
of $39,285, was approved. 

 
NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of an Award in the 

Amount of $11,925 to Florida Fish 
Farms, Inc. for the Purchase of 2,650 
Triploid Grass Carp, Piggybacking Off 
the Broward County Contract 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, the purchase of 2,650 Triploid Grass Carp from Florida 
Fish Farms, Inc. in the Amount of $11,925, piggybacking off 
the Broward County Contract, was approved. 

 
TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Hach as Sole Service 

Provider for Certain Instruments 

• This is a contract for repair services. 

• The instruments are in place, but require repairs. 

• They are the only company which can repair or replace the parts. 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, the proposal from Hach Service Plus as the sole service 
provider for certain instruments, was approved. 

 
ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Work Authorizations 

A. Work Authorization #168 for Membrane Valve Replacement 

• This will reduce recovery to 60%.  There will be more flushing across the 

membrane. 

• This will increase the longevity of the membranes. 

• It is difficult to determine how many more years the membranes will last. 

Agenda Page 8



November 18, 2019   Coral Springs Improvement District 

5 
Unapproved Minutes 

 

Mr. Okyn MOVED to approve Work Authorization #168 for 
Membrane Valve Replacement for a total cost of $156,325, 
and Dr. Shank seconded the motion. 

 

• The District should be named as an additional insured party on the Florida 

Fish Farms contract, as well as all other policies. 

• Mr. Lewis discussed the Florida Statute regarding public records.  The 

language should be incorporated into all Work Authorizations. 

There being no further discussion, 

 

On VOICE vote, with all in favor, the prior motion was 
approved. 

 

B. Work Authorization #169 for Stormwater Pump Stations #1 and #2 
Hurricane Hardening Design 

• The work will be done within the appropriate time criteria. 

• There is no reimbursement for the engineering work. 

• The Board will be presented with a work authorization for additional 

construction services in January. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, Work Authorization #169 for Stormwater Pump Stations 
#1 and #2 Hurricane Hardening Design for a total cost of 
$40,540, was approved. 

 
TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Staff Reports 

A. Manager – Ken Cassel 

• Mr. Cassel apologized for not catching the issues with the revenue 

projections for the last two years.  Mr. Cassel will be more involved to ensure 

the revenue projections are accurate up front, and staff will ensure the rest 

of the budget complies with the Board’s directions. 

• The Hearing is scheduled to be held between March 27, 2020 and April 6, 

2020. 

 

 

Agenda Page 9



November 18, 2019   Coral Springs Improvement District 

6 
Unapproved Minutes 

B. Engineer – Rick Olson 
Mr. Olson reviewed his monthly status report, a copy of which is attached hereto 

and made part of the public record. 

 
C. Department Reports 

• Operations – Dan Daly 
➢ Utility Billing Work Orders 

This item is for information only. The Broward County School Board meeting was 
discussed. 

 

• Utilities Update – David McIntosh 
Mr. McIntosh provided an update on FEMA. 
 

• Water – Joe Stephens 
Mr. Stephens reviewed his report, a copy of which is attached hereto and made 

part of the public record. The Workshop was discussed. 

 

• Wastewater – Tom Kedrierski 
Mr. Kedrierski reviewed his report, a copy of which is attached hereto and made 

part of the public record. 

 

• Stormwater – Shawn Frankenhauser 
Mr. Frankenhauser reviewed his report, a copy of which is attached hereto and 

made part of the public record. 

 

• Field – Curt Dwiggins 
Mr. Dwiggins reviewed his report, a copy of which is attached hereto and made 

part of the public record. 

 

• Maintenance Report – Pedro Vasquez 
Mr. Vasquez reviewed his report, a copy of which is attached hereto and made 

part of the public record. 

 

• Human Resources – Jan Zilmer 
Mr. Zilmer reported a new electrician will start on Monday. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 10



November 18, 2019   Coral Springs Improvement District 

7 
Unapproved Minutes 

• Motion to Accept Department Reports 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, the Department Reports were accepted. 

 
D. Attorney 

• Mr. Lewis announced that Chapter 298 of the Florida Statutes with regards 

to appointment of officers, does not apply.  Both current officers are 

empowered to appoint a replacement for Mr. Holland for the remainder of 

the term.  Dr. Shank is hoping to appoint someone at the December 

meeting. 

 
THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisors’ Requests 

• Mr. Zilmer will meet with the possible candidate for the Board. 

• Dr. Shank has asked that a tree be planted, along with benches in Mr. 

Holland’s memory. 

 
FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Adjournment 
 There being no further business, 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Okyn, seconded by Dr. Shank, with all in 
favor, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 5:37 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________  ________________________________ 
Kenneth Cassel     Dr. Martin Shank 
Assistant Secretary     President 

Agenda Page 11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fourth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 12



 

 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL REPORTING – MEETING DECEMBER 16, 2019 

Agenda Page 13



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR NOVEMBER 2019 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DECEMBER 16, 2019 

Board of Supervisors Meeting 
 

Agenda Page 14



DESCRIPTION GENERAL WATER & SEWER GENERAL TOTALS

FUND FUND FIXED ASSETS

ASSETS

Cash & Cash Equivalents

  Checking Accounts 634,666$           1,415,440          -$                   2,050,106$        

  CDAR'S -                     2,000,000          -                     2,000,000          

  CD'S & Money Market Accounts 4,713,262          11,309,067        -                     16,022,329        

  Investments 1,546,153          3,285,330          -                     4,831,483          

Restricted Investments -                     5,028,960          -                     5,028,960          

Accounts Receivable -                     856,554             -                     856,554             

Accrued Interest Receivable 20,575               108,831             -                     129,406             

Unbilled Utility Revenues Receivable -                     880,516             -                     880,516             

Due from Other Funds -                     11,822               -                     11,822               

Prepaid Expenses 23,530               215,221             -                     238,751             

Deferred Outflow-2007 Series -                     1,470,254          -                     1,470,254          

Land -                     361,739             553,200             914,939             

Easements -                     394,998             -                     394,998             

Meters in Field (Net) -                     863,036             -                     863,036             

Machinery & Equipment (Net) -                     1,079,450          155,242             1,234,692          

Imp. Other than Bldgs. (Net) -                     52,054,637        6,242,174          58,296,811        

Buildings (Net) -                     146,168             -                     146,168             

Construction in Progress -                     1,411,153          -                     1,411,153          

TOTAL ASSETS 6,938,186$        82,893,176$      6,950,616$        96,781,978$      
 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET

NOVEMBER 30, 2019

All Fund Types and Account Groups

Agenda Page 15



DESCRIPTION GENERAL WATER & SEWER GENERAL TOTALS

FUND FUND FIXED ASSETS

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET

NOVEMBER 30, 2019

All Fund Types and Account Groups

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 500$                  -$                   -$                   500$                  

Contracts Payable -                     -                     -                     -                     

Retainage Payable -                     -                     -                     -                     

Accrued Int Payable-2016 Series -                     490,732             -                     490,732             

Accrued Wages Payable -                     -                     -                     -                     

Accrued Vac/Sick Time Payable -                     458,991             -                     458,991             

Pension Payable -                     -                     -                     -                     

Utility Tax Payable -                     53,874               -                     53,874               

Payroll Taxes Payable -                     -                     -                     -                     

Deposits 77,669               560,553             -                     638,222             

Deferred Revenues -                     -                     -                     -                     

Due to Other Funds 11,822               1,199                 -                     13,021               

Net OPEB Obligation -                     109,239             -                     109,239             

Bonds Payable-2016 Series -                     38,615,000        -                     38,615,000        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 89,991$             40,289,588$      -$                   40,379,579$      

 

FUND BALANCE / NET POSITION  

 

Fund Balance:   

  Unspendable 23,530               -                     23,530               

  Assigned 2,630,000          -                     2,630,000          

  Unassigned 4,194,665          -                     -                     4,194,665          

Net Position -                     42,603,588        -                     42,603,588        

Investment in GF -                     -                     6,950,616          6,950,616          

TOTAL FUND BALANCE/ NET ASSETS 6,848,195$        42,603,588$      6,950,616$        56,402,399$      

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 6,938,186$        82,893,176$      6,950,616$        96,781,978$      

Agenda Page 16



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 2 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2019-2020 11/30/2019 11/30/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES

Assessments (Net)      (*) 3,429,399$        571,567             262,804$           (308,763)$          

Permit Review Fees 1,000                 167                    200                    33                      

Interest Income 20,000               3,333                 11,171               7,838                 

Shared Personnel Revenue 34,912               5,823                 5,823                 -                         

Miscellaneous Revenue -                         -                         -                         -                         

FEMA Reimbursement -                         -                         -                         -                         

Carry Forward Assigned Funds (*)    420,557             -                         -                         -                         

TOTAL REVENUES 3,905,868$        580,890$           279,998$           (300,892)$          

 

EXPENDITURES  
 

ADMINISTRATIVE  

    

Supervisor Fees 7,200$               1,200$               1,000$               200$                  

Salaries/Wages 162,726             31,293               22,350               8,943                 

Special Pay 281                    47                      -                         47                      

FICA Taxes 13,000               2,500                 1,786                 714                    

Pension Expense 19,527               3,755                 2,682                 1,073                 

Health Insurance 63,655               11,140               10,773               367                    

Workers Comp. Ins. 620                    103                    77                      26                      

Engineering Fees 42,000               7,000                 -                         7,000                 

Legal Fees  84,000               14,000               7,369                 6,631                 

Special Consulting Services  94,600               15,767               5,203                 10,564               

Annual Audit (*) 10,600               5,300                 1,400                 3,900                 

Actuarial Computation-OPEB  2,772                 462                    -                         462                    

Management Fees 59,032               9,839                 -                         9,839                 

Telephone Expense 3,434                 574                    574                    -                         

Postage 688                    118                    118                    -                         

Printing & Binding 1,298                 218                    218                    -                         

Administrative Building Cost 12,360               2,060                 2,060                 -                         

Insurance 1,238                 206                    133                    73                      

Legal Advertising 2,000                 333                    270                    63                      

Contingencies/Other Current Charges 1,000                 167                    124                    43                      

Paver Incentive Program 12,500               2,083                 -                         2,083                 

Computer Expense/Technology 29,400               4,900                 2,570                 2,330                 

Digital Record Management 1,000                 167                    -                         167                    

Office Supplies 7,337                 1,219                 1,219                 -                         

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits 7,875                 1,313                 175                    1,138                 

Promotional Expenses 4,800                 800                    -                         800                    

Capital Purchases -                         -                         -                         -                         

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 644,943$           116,564$           60,101$             56,463$             

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance

For the Period Ending November 30, 2019

Agenda Page 17



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 2 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2019-2020 11/30/2019 11/30/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance

For the Period Ending November 30, 2019

 

FIELD OPERATIONS

Salaries and Wages 286,361$           55,069$             43,824$             11,245$             

Special Pay 921                    154                    -                         154                    

FICA Taxes 21,907               4,213                 3,304                 909                    

Pension Expense 34,363               6,608                 5,266                 1,342                 

Health Insurance 107,813             17,969               15,526               2,443                 

Worker's Comp. Insurance 15,864               2,644                 2,483                 161                    

Water Quality Testing 3,000                 500                    -                         500                    

Communications-Radios/Cellphones 2,022                 337                    100                    237                    

Electric 1,458                 243                    71                      172                    

Rentals & Leases 500                    83                      -                         83                      

Insurance 15,290               2,548                 1,518                 1,030                 

Hurricane Irma Processing Fees -                         -                         -                         -                         

R & M - General 74,250               12,375               1,724                 10,651               

R & M - Facility 3,000                 500                    202                    298                    

R & M - Culvert Inspection & Cleaning 119,500             19,917               -                         19,917               

R & M - Canal Dredging & Maintenance 25,000               4,167                 -                         4,167                 

R & M - Vegetation Management 60,000               10,000               2,200                 7,800                 

Operating Supplies - General 17,025               2,838                 -                         2,838                 

Operating Supplies - Chemicals 120,540             20,090               31,706               (11,616)              

Operating Supplies - Uniform 2,414                 402                    131                    271                    

Operating Supplies - Motor Fuels 51,705               8,618                 510                    8,108                 

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits 3,842                 640                    225                    415                    

Capital Outlay-Equipment 27,500               4,583                 -                         4,583                 

Capital Improvements 655,650             109,275             -                         109,275             

 

TOTAL FIELD 1,649,925$        283,773$           108,790$           174,983$           

  

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,294,868$        400,337$           168,891$           231,446$           

   

RESERVES

Reserved for 1st Qtr. Operating 361,000             60,167               -                         60,167               

Reserved for Projects & Emergencies 250,000             41,667               -                         41,667               

Storm Damages Reserves 1,000,000          166,667             -                         166,667             

TOTAL RESERVES 1,611,000$        268,501$           -$                   268,501$           

 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & RESERVES 3,905,868$        668,838$           168,891$           499,947$           

EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

     EXPENDITURES & RESERVES -$                   111,107$           

FUND BALANCE BEGINNING  6,737,088$        

FUND BALANCE ENDING  6,848,195$        

(*) Not prorated figures  

Agenda Page 18



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 2 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2019-2020 11/30/2019 11/30/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES

Water Revenue 6,467,008$        1,077,835           1,132,796$        54,961$             

Sewer Revenue 5,852,977          975,496              1,016,516          41,020               

Standby Revenue 3,120                 520                     520                    -                     

Processing Fees 12,000               2,000                  3,440                 1,440                 

Lien Information Fees 9,000                 1,500                  2,625                 1,125                 

Delinquent Fees 290,000             46,883                46,950               67                      

Contract Utility Billing Services 62,602               10,442                10,442               -                     

Contract HR & Payroll Services 13,289               2,219                  2,219                 -                     

Facility Connection Fees -                     -                      4,480                 4,480                 

Meter Fees -                     -                      425                    425                    

Line Connection Fees -                     -                      300                    300                    

Interest Income-Restricted -                     -                      14,444               14,444               

Interest Income-Operations 65,000               10,833                28,209               17,376               

Rent Revenue 65,203               10,867                16,337                5,470                 

Technology Sharing Revenue 15,450               2,570                  2,570                 -                     

Misc. Revenues 12,000               2,000                  48,813               46,813               

Renewal & Replacement  (*) -                     -                      -                     -                     

Carryforward Prior Yr. Fund Balance (*) 1,705,236          -                      -                     -                     

TOTAL REVENUES 14,572,885$      2,143,165$         2,331,086$        187,921$           
 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WATER & SEWER FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets

For the Period Ending November 30, 2019

Agenda Page 19



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 2 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2019-2020 11/30/2019 11/30/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WATER & SEWER FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets

For the Period Ending November 30, 2019

EXPENSES    

ADMINISTRATIVE

Salaries and Wages   1,011,726$        194,563$            158,368$            36,195$             

Special Pay (*) 2,534                 422                     -                     422                    

FICA Taxes 77,397               14,884                11,255               3,629                 

Pension Expense 121,408             23,348                18,178               5,170                 

Health Insurance 233,182             38,864                32,815               6,049                 

Workers Comp. Insurance 3,423                 571                     316                    255                    

Unemployment Compensation 4,000                 667                     -                     667                    

Engineering Fees  (*) 33,600               5,600                  -                      5,600                 

OPEB Expense 2,863                 477                     -                     477                    

Trustee/Other Debt Expenses (*) 10,720               9,827                  9,159                 668                    

Legal Fees (*) 60,000               10,000                1,512                  8,488                 

Special Consulting Services 86,000               14,333                -                     14,333               

Travel & Per Diem (Board) 4,500                 750                     -                     750                    

Annual Audit  (*) 12,150               6,075                  2,100                  3,975                 

Actuarial Computation - OPEB 2,700                 450                     -                     450                    

Management Fees 88,552               14,759                -                     14,759               

Telephone Expense 13,835               2,306                  2,060                  246                    

Postage 36,600               6,100                  2,682                  3,418                 

Printing & Binding 21,970               3,662                  1,059                  2,603                 

Electric Expense 12,960               2,160                  993                    1,167                 

Rentals and Leases 3,075                 512                     365                     147                    

Insurance 16,520               2,753                  1,641                 1,112                 

Repair and Maintenance 26,460               4,410                  2,383                 2,027                 

Legal Advertising 4,500                 750                     -                     750                    

Other Current Charges 29,910               4,985                  3,688                 1,297                 

Merchant Fees 78,520               13,087                12,449               638                    

Computer/Technology Expenses 113,835             18,973                6,258                 12,715               

Employment Ads 13,550               2,258                   1,864                 394                    

Toilet Rebate 14,850               2,475                  2,475                 -                     

Office Supplies 4,000                 667                     (342)                   1,009                 

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits (*) 12,000               2,000                  650                    1,350                 

Promotional Expenses (*) 14,640               2,440                  2,555                 (115)                   

Capital Outlay  (*) 23,000               3,833                  2,011                 1,822                 

Total Administrative 2,194,979$        408,961$            276,494$           132,467$           

Agenda Page 20



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 2 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2019-2020 11/30/2019 11/30/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WATER & SEWER FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets

For the Period Ending November 30, 2019

 

PLANT OPERATIONS  

Salaries and Wages   1,700,446$        327,009$            238,201$           88,808$             

Special Pay (*) 2,703                 451                     -                     451                    

FICA Taxes 130,084             25,016                18,138               6,878                 

Pension Expense 201,000             38,654                27,230               11,424               

Health Insurance 354,297             59,050                52,440               6,610                 

Workers Comp. Insurance 93,877               15,646                10,170                5,476                 

OPEB Expense 4,437                 740                     -                     740                    

Water Quality Testing  68,475               11,413                6,580                  4,833                 

Telephone Expense 8,900                 1,483                  1,230                 253                    

Electric Expense  (*) 698,830             116,472              51,663               64,809               

Rentals and Leases 15,500               2,583                  1,778                 805                    

Insurance 166,630             27,772                18,762               9,010                 

Repair & Maintenance-General 1,007,715          167,953              38,892               129,061             

Repair & Maint-Filters for Water Plant (*) 678,290             113,048              3,524                 109,524             

Sludge Management - Sewer  150,000             25,000                9,943                 15,057               

Office Supplies 3,635                 606                     434                    172                    

Operating Supplies - General           98,675               16,446                3,154                 13,292               

Operating Supplies - Chemicals  (*)                                 337,995             56,333                26,614               29,719               

Uniforms         9,775                 1,629                  1,221                 408                    

Motor Fuels     99,411               16,569                714                    15,855               

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits (*) 56,950               9,492                  1,828                 7,664                 

Capital Outlay   (*) 964,000             160,667              25,864                134,803             

Renewal & Replacement (*) -                     -                      -                     -                     

TOTAL PLANT OPERATIONS 6,851,625$        1,194,032$         538,380$           655,652$           
 

Agenda Page 21



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 2 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2019-2020 11/30/2019 11/30/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WATER & SEWER FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets

For the Period Ending November 30, 2019

FIELD OPERATIONS  

Salaries and Wages 786,613$           151,272$            108,024$           43,248$             

Special Pay 1,405                 234                     -                     234                    

FICA Taxes 60,176               11,572                8,173 3,399                 

Pension Expense 94,394               18,153                12,756               5,397                 

Health Insurance 247,480             41,247                35,023               6,224                 

Workers Comp. Insurance 49,556               8,259                  5,774                 2,485                 

OPEB Expense 2,723                 454                     -                     454                    

Water Quality Testing 1,000                 167                     60                      107                    

Naturescape Irrigation Service (*) 4,970                 828                     -                     828                    

Telephone Expense 13,950               2,325                  1,827                 498                    

Electric Expense  (*) 114,480             19,080                8,554                 10,526               

Rent Expense 9,500                 1,583                  2,900                 (1,317)                

Rent Expense - SCADA 56,040               9,340                  9,340                 -                     

Insurance 24,000               4,000                  2,441                  1,559                 

Repairs and Maintenance 216,000             36,000                35,835               165                    

R&M Lift Stations 168,850             28,142                21,431               6,711                 

R&M Generators 33,080               5,513                  9,434                 (3,921)                

Meters 60,680               10,113                2,372                 7,741                 

Office Supplies 1,680                 280                     82                      198                    

Operating Supplies - General            57,190               9,532                  6,281                  3,251                 

Uniforms         5,820                 970                     768                    202                    

Motor Fuels     22,860               3,810                  662                    3,148                 

Dues, Licenses, Schools & Permits  (*) 13,300               2,217                  330                    1,887                 

Capital Outlay (*) 381,000             63,500                -                      63,500               

Renewal & Replacement  (*) -                     -                      -                      -                     

TOTAL FIELD OPERATIONS 2,426,747$        428,591$            272,067$           156,524$           
   

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 11,473,351$      2,031,584$         1,086,941$        944,643$           
   

Agenda Page 22



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 2 MONTHS VARIANCE

BUDGET THRU ENDING FAVORABLE

FY 2019-2020 11/30/2019 11/30/2019 (UNFAVORABLE)

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WATER & SEWER FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets

For the Period Ending November 30, 2019

RESERVES

Required Reserve for R & R -                     -                      -                     -                     

TOTAL OPERATING EXP & RESERVE 11,473,351$      2,031,584$         1,086,941$        944,643$           

AVAILABLE FOR DEBT SERVICE 3,099,534$        1,244,145$        

DEBT SERVICE

Principal

 2016 Series 1,640,000          273,330              273,330             -                     

Interest  

 2016 Series 1,177,758          193,514              193,514             -                     

Total Debt Service 2,817,758$        466,844$            466,844$           -$                   
 

Excess Revenues (Expenses) 281,776             777,301             

TOTAL DEBT SERV & RESERVES 3,099,534          1,244,145          

Net Assets Beginning  41,826,287$      

Net Assets Ending  42,603,588$      

(*) Not prorated figures    

AMOUNT

REVENUES 2,331,086$        

OPERATING EXENDITURES  

   Operating Expenditures-Admin 276,494             

   Operating Expenditures-Plant 538,380             

   Operating Expenditures-Field 272,067             

TOTAL OPERATING EXENDITURES 1,086,941$        

Reserve Required for Future Debt Service -                     
 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES & RESERVES 1,086,941$        

AVAILABLE FOR DEBT SERVICE 1,244,145$        

LESS: DEBT SERVICE 466,844             

EXCESS REVENUES (EXP) 777,301$           

Debt Service

Coverage

2.67                   

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

& DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

Agenda Page 23



-                             

$262,804.00

$262,804.00TOTALS

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS FOR FY 2019 - 2020

NOVEMBER, 2019

DATE ASSESSMENTS COLLECTED
(Net of all Commissions & Fees)

10/31/2019

11/30/2019

Agenda Page 24



FUND CHECK DATE CHECK No. AMOUNT

General Fund 11/01/2019 thru 11/30/2019 #5085 - #5098 $112,717.21
 

Total  $112,717.21
 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTERS
NOVEMBER 2019

Agenda Page 25



Agenda Page 26



Agenda Page 27



FUND CHECK DATE CHECK No. AMOUNT

Water and Sewer 11/01/2019 thru 11/30/2019 #28315 - #28446 $582,078.50
 

Total  $582,078.50

NOVEMBER 2019

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTERS

Agenda Page 28



Agenda Page 29



Agenda Page 30



Agenda Page 31



Agenda Page 32



Agenda Page 33



Agenda Page 34



Agenda Page 35



Agenda Page 36



5A 
Placeholder for Permit #2019-6

Agenda Page 37



5B. 

Agenda Page 38



28 

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT 

Board of Supervisors  

Coral Springs Improvement District 

10300 NW 11th Manor 

Coral Springs, FL 33071 

 Permit Type 

 Right of Way 

 Surface Water Management 
 General 

1. PROPOSED USE OF DISTRICT FACILITY:  
 

2. LOCATION OF WORK:  
 
  

Subdivision  Lot No.  Block No.
     
Section:   Township:   Range:  
     

3. DISTRICT WORKS INVOLVED IN PROOSED CONSTRUCTION OR USE: 
 

4. NAME, ADDRESS, PHONE AND FAX OF OWNER OF PROPOSED WORK OR STRUCTURE: 
 
 

5. NAME, ADDRESS, PHONE AND FAX OF APPLICANT OTHER THAN OWNER (If any): 
 
 
 

6. AREA PROPOSED TO BE SERVED:  (Give property description sufficient for identification, 
 
 

7. This application, including sketches, drawings or plans and specifications attached, contains a 
full and complete description of the work proposed or use desired of the above described 
facilities of the District and for which permit is herewith applied.  It shall be part of any permit 
that may be issued.  It is agreed that all work or the use of the District's facilities involved will be 
in accordance with the permit to be granted and with the Permit Criteria Manual heretofore 
adopted by the District, which have been examined and are understood by the applicant and as 
the same may be hereafter from time to time amended, changed or revised and which (it is 
further understood) shall be incorporated in reference as a part of any permit which may be 
granted. 

Agenda Page 39

ibrainf
Stamp

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text
Telecommunication / MCI Metro Acc

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text
1.Canal L-201 (Coral Ridge Dr)

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text
6-31-32

ibrainf
Typewritten Text
48S-49S

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text
41E

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text
MCImetro Access Transmission Services Corp

ibrainf
Typewritten Text
16563 NW 15TH AVE  Miami FL 33169  305-356-3160 

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text
Mastec North America / 954-292-7612

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text
10441 SW 187th Street Miami FL 33157   

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text
954-292-7612

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text
Upon Approval or Request for Revision Please contact Michelle or Denise at permit@cwsifl.com or 954-893-0501 

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text

ibrainf
Typewritten Text



Sixth Order of Business 

Agenda Page 40



 

01220534-1   

RESOLUTION 2020 – 5 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT APPROVING 
UTILITY RATE MODIFICATIONS FOR WATER AND SEWER 
SERVICES TO BROWARD COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
FACILITIES LOCATED WITHIN THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT; 
PROVIDING FOR FUTURE MODIFICATIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 2004-469, Laws of Florida, the Board of Supervisors of the 
Coral Springs Improvement District (the “District”) possesses the necessary statutory authority 
to establish rates and fees for potable water service and wastewater collection and disposal 
services within the District; and  

WHEREAS, Broward County School District (the “School District”) receives potable water 
service and wastewater collection and disposal services from the District for five schools located 
within the District; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 1013, Florida Statutes, the School District has the 
authority to pay for infrastructure and utility services such as potable water and wastewater 
collection and disposal, provided the School District only pays for its prorata share of such 
services; and 

WHEREAS, the District staff has analyzed its water and sewer rate structure as it relates 
to the referenced School District facilities, has concluded that the District rate structure should 
be amended to provide a more equitable rate to the School District’s facilities and has 
communicated the District proposal to School District staff; and 

WHEREAS, School District staff has accepted the District’s proposed rate structure for 
School District facilities within the District.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE CORAL 
SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

Section 1. The recitals above are true and accurate and are hereby made a part of 
this resolution. 

Section 2. Effective October 1, 2019, the base rate for potable water service for 
properties owned or operated by the School Board of Broward County shall be $19.04 per ERC 
and $03.61 per 1,000 gallons of use per ERC.  The base rate for waste water collection and 
disposal service shall be $19.04 per ERC and $03.61 per 1,000 gallons of use per ERC. 

Section 3. Beginning October 1, 2020, the District Board of Supervisors may increase 
all water and wastewater rates based on current or future methodology studies. 

Agenda Page 41



 

01220534-1  -2- 
 

Section 4. The District Operations Manager or his/her field manager may request 
inspection of School District facilities by District staff to determine what if any modifications to 
School District facilities have been made that would affect District fee calculations.  Any report 
generated shall be made available to School District staff.  

Section 5. This resolution shall take effect upon passage by the Board of Supervisors 
of the Coral Springs Improvement District. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of December, 2019. 

____________________________________ 
Martin Shank, President 

____________________________________ 
Kenneth G. Cassel, Assistant Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
Terry E. Lewis, District Attorney 

Agenda Page 42



Seventh Order of Business 

Agenda Page 43



00768539-2 1 

HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT  

FOR WAIVER FROM CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

CANAL BANK STANDARDS 

THIS HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered 

into on this day of______________________, 2019 by and between CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT (hereinafter the “District”) and CLP HARBOR INN OWNER, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
(hereinafter the “Permittee”). 

WHEREAS, the District, is a Special Improvement District organized under Florida Statute Chapter 189 

for, amongst other purposes, the regulation of surface water within its boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the Permittee is the owner of certain real property located at 201 N. University Drive, Coral 

Springs, FL (hereinafter the “Subject Property”), and has requested approval of a storm water management plan 

for the Subject Property, and 

WHEREAS, a portion of the canal within, or immediately adjacent to, the Subject Property does not 

conform to the District standard profile for the slope of the bank; and  

WHEREAS, District has agreed at Permittee’s request to provide a waiver to permit the canal to remain 

in the current configuration, conditioned upon Permittee agreeing to provide a hold harmless agreement for any 

potential impacts resulting from the existing profile of the slope and further agreeing to maintain canal in its current 

configuration; and 

WHEREAS, Permittee has agreed to provide this Agreement per the District’s condition; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the issuance of a surface water permit and the mutual agreements 

herein, Permittee agrees as follows: 

1. RECITALS. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein. 

2. SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION. The legal description of the Subject Property is:

SEE EXHIBIT A ATTACHED HERETO. 

Broward County Property Appraiser ID #: 4841 28 03 6150 

3. CONDITION OF CANAL BANK.  The Permittee agrees to maintain the canal bank within, or immediately

adjacent to the Subject Property, in its current condition, and further agrees to correct any future damage to the

canal bank, regardless of how such damage arose.  The District agrees to permit the canal to remain in its current

condition, provided that any additional damage to the canal or canal bank is corrected within thirty (30) days after

written notice to the Permittee or its successor in title, which written notice shall be sent certified mail, return

receipt requested to the address of the Permittee or its successor in title as set forth in the records of the Broward

County Property Appraiser.

4. INDEMNITY/HOLD HARMLESS.

(a) Permittee expressly agrees to the following:

Agenda Page 44



 

00768539-2  2 

Permittee assumes all risks and hazards incidental to Permittee's construction and operation of 

the surface water system, specifically including the current configuration of the canals on and 

adjacent to the Subject Property. Permittee does hereby agree to waive, release, absolve, 

indemnify, defend and hold harmless the District, its Board of Supervisors, officers, employees, 

agents and attorneys of, from and against all liability and expense, including reasonable attorney's 

fees, in connection with any and all third-party claims, demands, damages, actions, causes of 

action, and suits in equity of whatever kind or nature, including claims for personal injury, property 

damage, equitable relief, or loss of use, arising out of Permittee's construction and operation of the 

surface water management system as permitted. Permittee's liability hereunder shall include all 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by the District in the enforcement of this 

indemnification provision. This indemnification includes claims made by the employees of the 

Permittee against the District and the Permittee hereby waives its entitlement, if any, to immunity 

under Section 440.11, Florida Statutes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 

Agreement, Permittee’s liability shall be limited to the District’s actual out-of-pocket damages and 

expenses, and shall not include special, consequential, or punitive damages, or damages or 

expenses resulting from the District’s gross negligence or intentional wrongful acts.  The 

obligations contained in this provision shall not be limited by the amount of any insurance required 

to be obtained or maintained under this Agreement.  This provision shall survive the termination of 

this Agreement. 

(b) Nothing contained in the foregoing indemnifications shall be construed to be a waiver of 

any immunity or limitation of liability the District may be entitled to under the doctrine of sovereign 

immunity or Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

(c) Permittee agrees to repair or replace any damage to any real or personal property of the 

District directly caused by the actions or omissions of the Permittee, its officers, officials, 

employees, agents and participants in the installation and operation of the surface water system, 

or resulting from the configuration of the canal bank. 

5. TERMINATION.  This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such time as the Permittee or 

its successor in title receives authorization from the District to restore the canal bank consistent with District 

Standards and completes all restoration work.   

6. AGREEMENT TO RUN WITH THE LAND. This agreement shall run with the land and be binding upon, 

inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable against all parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.  

The obligations of Permittee or any successor in title to Permittee under this Agreement shall terminate upon 

conveyance of the Subject Property by such party. 

7. REGULATION COMPLIANCE. During the performance of this Agreement, Permittee agrees to abide by 

any and all administrative, operational, and safety rules and regulations established by the District, its agents 

and/or employees in the permitting, construction and operation of the surface water system. Any breach of any 

rule or regulation established by the District (except those conditions specifying canal bank slope standards 

waived by this Agreement relating to the configuration of the canal) shall result in an immediate termination of the 

waiver granted and may, in the District’s sole discretion, mandate the reconstruction of the canal to the District 

standard configuration and slope. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year first above written. 

 

Agenda Page 45



 

00768539-2  3 

 

CLP HARBOR INN OWNER, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 

 
        

 
__________________________________ 
(Signature) 

By: ________________________________ 

Title:__________________________________ 

WITNESS: 

_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Witness Signature Witness Name (Printed) 

__________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Witness Signature Witness Name (Printed) 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF __________________ 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____day of 
________________, 2019, by ____________________________, as ___________________, 
on behalf of CLP Harbor Inn Owner, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,  who is personally 
known to me and who did not take an oath. 

__________________________________________ 
Notary Signature 

__________________________________________ 
Print Name 

Notary Public - State of Florida 

Commission No. 

Agenda Page 46



 

00768539-2  4 

My Commission Expires:_____________________ 

Agenda Page 47



 

00768539-2  5 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

____________________________________________ 
(Signature) 
By: Dr. Martin Shank  
Title: President, Board of Supervisors 

WITNESS: 

__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Witness Signature Witness Name (Printed) 

_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Witness Signature Witness Name (Printed) 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF BROWARD 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____day of ___________, 
2019, by _____________________________________, _______________________ of the 
Coral Springs Improvement District who is personally known to me and who did not take an oath. 

__________________________________________ 
Notary Signature 

__________________________________________ 
Print Name 

Notary Public - State of Florida 

Commission No. 

My Commission Expires:____________________ 
 
 

Agenda Page 48



 

00768539-2  6 

 
 
 
ACTIVE 47238659v3/020821.010000 

Agenda Page 49



Eighth Order of Business 

Agenda Page 50



8A 

Agenda Page 51



  
      1 of 12 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 
CSID WA No. 170 

Globaltech No. 151139 

 

Pursuant to the provisions contained in the "Contract for Professional Engineering 

Consulting and Design-Build Services on a Continuing Contract Basis " between 

the CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as 

"OWNER", and  Globaltech, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "FIRM", dated July 1, 

2012  (hereinafter referred to as "AGREEMENT"), this Work Authorization 

authorizes the FIRM to provide services under the terms and conditions set forth 

herein and in the AGREEMENT, which is incorporated herein by reference as 

though set forth in full. 

 

The OWNER desires design-build services related to CSID WTP Sulfuric Acid 

Tank Inspection, hereinafter referred to as the “Specific Project”. 

  

Section 1 – Terms 
The FIRM shall be defined as an individual, corporation or contractor having 

a direct contract with the OWNER or with any other subcontractor in the 

performance of a part of the work contracted for under the terms of this 

Work Authorization with the OWNER. 

 
Section 2 – Scope of Work 

The FIRM will provide the following services in accordance with Section 1 

and 2 of the AGREEMENT. 

 

Background 
The CSID Water Treatment Plant (WTP) 4,000-gallon steel sulfuric-acid-

tank is approximately ten (10) years old, and based on the tank 

manufacturer’s recommendations, the plant staff needs to have an 

Agenda Page 52



  
      2 of 12 

inspection performed to evaluate the condition of the steel tank and it’s 

coatings, both inside and outside the tank.    

 

This Work Authorization includes cleaning and inspection of the acid bulk 

tank as well as construction of a temporary bulk acid storage system while 

the existing bulk tank is out of service.  To complete this work, the FIRM is 

planning on using the services of an acid tank cleaning firm, Cliff Berry, Inc. 

(CBI) and a metal and coatings inspection firm, Corrosion Probe, Inc. (CPI). 

 

The specific plan to complete this work is as follows: 

 

1. OWNER will deliver one full sulfuric acid tote and set it in the acid 
metering pump room. 

2. The FIRM will pipe up the acid tote discharge to the metering pumps 
suction piping with CPVC pipe and valves.  The piping connection 
will allow the metering pumps to be fed from either the bulk tank or 
the temporary tote.  

3. OWNER will deliver and set up empty totes near the bulk tank.   
4. OWNER will use the acid in the bulk tank down to about the level of 

the top of the outlet pipe.  Since the top of the outlet pipe is about 8-
inches above the tank floor there will still be about 250 gallons of acid 
remaining in the tank.  The FIRM will then transfer the remaining 
usable acid in the bulk tank to the totes.  It is likely that near the 
bottom there will be some residue/detritus that should not be re-used.   

5. OWNER will close the acid tank valves and have one empty tote 
(275-gallon disposal tote) delivered to bulk tank location that will be 
used to collect the residue and cleanings from the bulk tank. 

6. The FIRM will open the manway on top of the tank. 
7. The FIRM will have the Subcontractor (CBI) transfer/drain the 

remaining usable acid into the acid tote that will be pumped backed 
into the bulk tank at the end of the project.  CBI will then pump the 
non-reusable acid and residue in the bulk tank into the disposal tote, 
enter and clean the tank.  The acid residues and tank cleanings will 
be placed into the acid disposal tote.  This proposal is based on a 
maximum of one (1) 275-gallon disposal tote and a maximum of two 
(2) 10-hour workdays for tank draining and cleaning.  Subcontractor 
(CBI) will properly dispose of one (1) 275-gallon acid disposal tote 

8. The FIRM will have the Subconsultant (CPI) inspect the tank (inside 
and outside) in one day.  The FIRM will provide a ladder into tank, a 
confined space blower, an air quality meter and one person who will 

Agenda Page 53



  
      3 of 12 

stay on top of the tank (outside of the tank) for confined space 
requirements. 

9. After the inspection is complete, The FIRM will remove the ladder 
and confined space equipment and bolt the manway cover back on. 

10. OWNER will transfer the acid from the acid totes back into the bulk 
tank.  OWNER will be responsible for disposing of the empty acid 
totes. 

11. The FIRM will remove the temporary drain and bulk tank piping, 
disconnect the temporary acid tote and reconnect the metering 
pumps to bulk tank. 

12. OWNER will open the bulk tank valves and place the bulk tank back 
into operation. 

13. The FIRM will submit an inspection report with photographs and 
measurements along with potential repair recommendations, if any, 
to OWNER. 

 

Task 1 – Engineering Services  
This task includes project management and engineering services required to 

complete the project.   

 

Engineering and Project Management 
1. Attend preliminary scoping meeting with the OWNER. 

2. Coordinate with the OWNER and inspection subconsultant (CPI) and 

cleaning subcontractor (CBI). 

3. Arrange for subconsultant (CPI) to enter tank and perform inspection of 

the inside and outside of the tank.   

4. Submit tank inspection report with recommendations. 

 
Task 2 – Construction Services 

This task entails performing the work to clean and inspect the bulk tank.  The work, 

in general consists of the following:   

 

1. Connect and disconnect temporary bulk tank to the existing acid metering 

pumps suction piping. 

2. Finish emptying the acid bulk tank. 

3. Clean existing acid bulk tank.  

Agenda Page 54



  
      4 of 12 

4. Provide confined space equipment and a watch-person during tank 

entering activities. 

5. Dispose of one (1) 275-gallon acid residue/cleanings tote.   

 
Assumptions 
Assumptions for the project are as follows: 

• Cleaning of the tank will not take more than two (2) 10-hour workdays.  

Additional cleaning days will be $6,210 per day for CBI’s services plus 

potentially additional time for the FIRM’s staff. 

• The FIRM will be responsible for only one (1) 275-gallon waste acid 

tote.  Additional totes can be disposed of for $2,415 per tote, plus 

potentially additional time for the FIRM’s staff. 

• All material that is to be removed from the inside of the tank is 

pumpable. 

• The OWNER is responsible for moving or repositioning the totes. 

 

Section 3 – Location 
The services to be performed by the FIRM shall be at the following location:  

• CSID Water Treatment Plant 

 

Section 4 – Deliverables 

The FIRM will provide the following Deliverables to OWNER: 

• Sulfuric Acid Tank Inspection Report.  

 
Section 5 – Time of Performance 
Project will commence after execution of this Work Authorization and a Notice to 

Proceed is issued by OWNER. The FIRM and OWNER agree to the following 

schedule: 

 

Agenda Page 55



  
      5 of 12 

Task       Time Elapsed from NTP  
Notice to Proceed (NTP) 0 Days 
Mobilization                        8 weeks 
Cleaning and Inspection                        9 weeks 
Submit Inspection Report                        12 weeks 

 
The actual cleaning and inspection work will be completed in about one (1) week.  

The work should be coordinated with when a low volume of acid is in the bulk acid 

tank.  The OWNER should schedule their acid delivery to coincide with the planned 

work schedule.  The work start time can be delayed to meet the acid delivery 

schedule; however, the FIRM will still need about 30 days to coordinate the 

cleaning and inspection firms being at the site during the same week.    

 
Section 6 – Method and Amount of Compensation 

1. The FIRM shall be paid by the OWNER in accordance with the Florida’s 

Prompt Payment Act Florida Statute 218.70-79 and in accordance with the 

payment method as set forth in Section 6 of the AGREEMENT.  The 

calculations shall begin using the date the invoice was received.   

2. Total job price:  $56,023 which includes an allowance of $10,000 for 

unforeseen conditions.   

3. On the terms contained in the FIRM’s said proposal for the doing of said 

work and the said award therefore, and the specifications herein specifically 

referred to and made a part of this contract.  

4. The cost for the above scope of services is a lump sum (LS).  The LS is 

based on the materials, methods, and assumptions presented in the scope 

of services and may be adjusted based on final detail design and alternative 

selections or omissions.  The LS shall not be greater than the stated amount 

unless there is an approved increase in the scope of services.   

5. A Budget Summary for the above LS is provided in Attachment A.   

 
 
 

Agenda Page 56



  
      6 of 12 

Section 7 – Application for Progress Payment 
1. Unless otherwise prescribed by law, at the end of each month, the FIRM 

shall submit to the OWNER for review, an Application for Progress Payment 

filled out and signed by the FIRM covering the Work completed as of the 

date of the Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation 

as is required by the AGREEMENT.  

2. The Application for Progress Payment shall identify the amount of the FIRM 

Total Earnings to Date based upon value of original contract Work 

performed to date as approved by fully executed Change Orders.  

3. Payment shall be based upon percentage of work completed based upon 

the approved schedule of values. Retainage in the amount of 10% will be 

withheld on the calculated value of any work, with the exception of stored 

materials which may be paid at the supplier's invoiced cost. At FIRM's 

request, after 50% completion of the work has been achieved, the OWNER 

will implement a reduction in retainage to 5% of all future pay requests. If 

retainage is reduced, FIRM may not withhold more than 5% retainage from 

subcontractors or suppliers and will be required to certify compliance with 

F.S. 218.70 et seq on each subsequent pay application. Notwithstanding 

the foregoing, in no instance can the amount retained be less than the value 

of OWNER's good faith claims plus the value of the work the OWNER 

determines remains to be put in place or required to be performed as 

remedial activities. For the purposes of this section, 50% completion shall 

be that point in time when OWNER determines that half of the Work 

required by the Contract has been completed. In no event shall the Work 

be determined to be 50% completed before the OWNER has paid 50% of 

the Contract amount and 50% of the Contract time has expired. The amount 

of previous Pay Estimate payments shall then be subtracted to equal the 

Balance Due during the Pay Estimate period.  

4. When the OWNER determines the Work to be Substantially Complete, the 

OWNER may reduce the retainage to five percent (5%) of the dollar value 

of all Work satisfactorily completed to date, provided that the FIRM is 

Agenda Page 57



  
      7 of 12 

making satisfactory progress toward Final Completion of the Work, that in 

the opinion of both the Engineer and the OWNER there is no specific cause 

for a greater retainage, and the FIRM obtains the written consent of the 

Surety Companies furnishing the required Public Construction Bond on 

consent forms provided by the OWNER. The OWNER may reinstate the 

retainage up to ten percent (10%) if the OWNER determines, at its 

discretion or the Engineer's discretion, that the FIRM is not making 

satisfactory progress toward final completion of the Work or where there is 

other specific cause for such withholding.  

5. Partial payment may be made for the delivered cost of stored materials 

planned for incorporation into the Work, provided such materials meet the 

requirements of this Contract, the Contract Drawings, and the 

Specifications, and are delivered and suitably stored at the project site, or 

at another location acceptable to the OWNER.  Such material must be 

stored in a secure manor acceptable to the OWNER, and in accordance 

with the manufacturer's recommendations.   

6. The delivered cost of such stored or stockpiled materials may be included 

in any subsequent application for payment provided the FIRM meets the 

following conditions:  

a. An applicable purchase order or supplier's invoice is provided listing 

the materials in detail, the cost of each item, and identifies this 

specific contract by name. 

b. The materials are fully insured against loss or damage (from 

whatever source) or disappearance prior to incorporation into the 

Work.  

c. Stored materials approved for payment by the OWNER shall not be 

removed from the designated storage area except for incorporation 

into the Work. 

d. Evidence that the FIRM has verified quantity and quality of the 

materials delivered (verified packing list). 

Agenda Page 58



  
      8 of 12 

7. It is further agreed between the parties that the transfer of title and the 

OWNER's payment for any stored or stockpiled materials pursuant to 

these General Conditions, and any applicable provisions of the 

Supplementary General Conditions, shall in no way relieve the FIRM of 

the responsibility of ensuring the correctness of those materials and for 

furnishing and placing such materials in accordance with the 

requirements of this Contract, the Contract Drawings, the Technical 

Specifications, and any approved changes thereto. 

8. The following monthly Application for Progress Payment shall be 

accompanied by Bills of Sale, copies of paid invoices, releases of lien, 

or other documentation warranting that the FIRM has received the 

stored materials and equipment free and clear of all liens, charges, 

security interests, and encumbrances (which are hereinafter in these 

General Conditions referred to as "Liens") and evidence that the stored 

materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance 

and other arrangements to protect the OWNER's interest therein, all of 

which shall be satisfactory to the OWNER.  

9. The FIRM shall warrant and guarantee that title to all Work, materials, 

and equipment covered by an Application for Progress Payment, 

whether incorporated in the Work or not, will pass to the OWNER no 

later than the time of Final Payment free and clear of all liens or other 

encumbrances.  

10. The Engineer shall, within ten (10) days after receipt of each Application 

for Progress Payment, either indicate in writing a recommendation of 

payment and present the Application to the OWNER, or return the 

Application to the FIRM indicating in writing the Engineer's reasons for 

refusing to recommend payment. In the latter case, the FIRM may make 

the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application. Twenty (20) 

days after presentation of the application for progress payment to the 

OWNER with the Engineer's recommendation, the amount approved will 

Agenda Page 59



  
      9 of 12 

(subject to the provisions of the following Paragraph) become due and 

when due will be paid by the OWNER to the FIRM.  

In the event any dispute with respect to any payment or pay request 

cannot be resolved between the Contractor and Owner's project staff, 

Contractor may, in accordance with the alternative dispute resolution 

requirements of Florida Statute section 218.72, et seq, demand in writing 

a meeting with and review by the OWNER’S (agency) director. In the 

absence of the agency director, a deputy director may conduct the 

meeting and review. Such meeting and review shall occur within ten (10) 

business days of receipt by OWNER of FIRM’s written demand. The 

OWNER’s manager, shall issue a written decision on the dispute within 

ten (10) business days of such meeting. This decision shall be deemed 

the OWNER's final decision for the purposes of the Local Government 

Prompt Payment Act.  

11. The OWNER may refuse to make payment of the full amount 

recommended by the Engineer because claims have been made against 

the OWNER on account of the FIRM's performance of the Work, or 

because Liens have been filed in connection with the Work, or there are 

other items entitling the OWNER to a credit against the amount 

recommended, but the OWNER must give the FIRM written notice within 

twenty (20) business days after the date on which the invoice is stamped 

as received (with a copy to the Engineer) which specifies the invoice 

deficiency and any action necessary to make the invoice complete and 

proper. 

Section 8 – Responsibilities 
The FIRM shall, under no circumstance, look to the OWNER to provide any labor 

or equipment for the FIRM.  The FIRM shall provide all of the labor and equipment 

necessary to perform the job or services contracted for at the expense of the FIRM.  

Property of any kind that may be on the premises, which are the site of the 

performance of this contract, during the performance of this Work Authorization, 

shall be at the sole risk of the FIRM. 

Agenda Page 60



  
      10 of 12 

8.1 The OWNER hereby designates Joe Stephens as the OWNER's 

representative. 

8.2 In addition to applicable provisions of Section 2 of the AGREEMENT, 

the OWNER will: 

• Provide copies of existing drawings and equipment cut sheets if 

requested by FIRM 

 

The FIRM acknowledges and understands that it is an independent contractor in 

its relationship with the OWNER.  The FIRM hereby designates David Schuman 

as the FIRM’s representative.  

 

Section 9 – Insurance 
The FIRM shall provide certificate of insurance to the OWNER setting forth the 

type and amount of insurance carried by the FIRM and conforming to the minimum 

requirements set forth in the AGREEMENT.   

 
Section 10 – Level of Service 
The OWNER shall have the right to terminate said Agreement by giving the FIRM 

thirty (30) days written notice if the service that is being provided is not maintained 

at levels necessary to provide the required service.  The OWNER will determine in 

its sole judgment what constitutes a satisfactory level of service. 

 
Section 11 – Indemnification 

The Firm shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and its officers and 

employees as set forth in Section 11 of the Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

  

Agenda Page 61



  
      11 of 12 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization, consisting of  eleven (11)  

pages and Attachment A has been caused fully executed on behalf of the FIRM 

by its duly authorized officer, and the OWNER has the same to be duly name and 

in its behalf, effective as of the date herein above written. 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Signature of Witness 

 

_____________________________ 

Printed name of Witness 

 
CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

_________________________________ 

Signature of President 

 

Dr. Marty Shank____________________                                                            

Printed Name of President 

_________________________________ 

Date 

 Approved as to form and legality 

 

_________________________________ 

District Counsel 

State of Florida 

County of Palm Beach 

The foregoing instrument was 

acknowledged before me on this 

 

___ day of _________, 2019 by  

_________________________  

who is personally known to me OR 

produced ____________________ 

as identification. 

____________________________ 

Signature of Notary  

ENGINEER 
 

Globaltech, Inc.________________________ 

Company 

 

_____________________________________ 

Signature 

Troy Lyn, P.E., Vice President                         . 

Name and Title (typed or printed) 

 

_December 16, 2019______________________  

Date 
 

Agenda Page 62



 

  

Attachment A 
 

Budget Summary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 63



Officer E6 E4
3-Man Field 

Crew
Adm 3 Adm 1

$210.00 $175.00 $150.00 $218.75 $75.00 $50.00

1 Project Management & Site Review 8 4 4

Coordinate Pipe Modifications 4

Inspect Tank 8  $     5,200.00 CPI
Coordinate Tank Cleaning 8

Submit Report 4 2

  

Subtotal Task 1 0 32 0 0 6 4  $     6,250.00 

Labor Subtotal Hours 0 32 0 0 6 4

Labor Subtotal $0 $5,600 $0 $0 $450 $200 $6,250    

Labor Total  $     6,250.00 

Subconsultant Labor Total  $     5,200.00 

Subconsultant Multiplier 1.12

Subcontract Total  $     5,824.00 

PROJECT TOTAL  $   12,074.00 

ATTACHMENT  A
Engineering - CSID Acid tank Inspection

Engineering Budget Summary 

Task Task Description
Expense/ 

Subconsul. Total Labor

Expense/ 
Subconsul. 

Fee

Agenda Page 64



12/06/19 Order Date: 

To: Coral Springs Improvement Dist
10300 NW 11th Manor
Coral Springs FL 33071  

Project: 151139 

CSID Acid Tank Inspection
10300 NW 11th Manor
Coral Springs FL 33071  

Client Job No.: 

Plans Attached 

Specifications Attached 

Job Estimate 

1  General Conditions

General Conditions

Construction Scheduler 188.00

Construction PM 2,064.00

Construction Superintendent 752.00

Purchasing & Subcontract 774.00

Construction Assistant 900.00

Item Total: 4,678.00
40  Process Interconnections

SCH 80 CPVC Pipe & Fittings 1,845.75

Install Temp. Piping for Drain & Feed 5,400.00

Confined Space Personel 928.00

Tank Cleaning & Disposal of 1 Tote Acid 16,318.50

Demo Temp. Piping & Disconnect Tote 1,800.00

Safety 464.00

Safety Equipment 615.25

Confined Space Equipment 1,284.00

Misc Tools & Equipment 615.25

Item Total: 29,270.75
100  Engineering

Engineering 12,074.00

Item Total: 12,074.00
101  Allowance

Allowance 10,000.00

Item Total: 10,000.00

Total Estimate Amount: 56,022.75

Agenda Page 65



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8B. 
  

Agenda Page 66



 

  

AMENDMENT 1 TO 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 137 

Globaltech No. 151068 

 

Pursuant to the provisions contained in the "Contract for Professional Engineering 

Consulting and Design-Build Services on a Continuing Contract Basis " between 

the CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as 

"OWNER", and Globaltech, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "FIRM", dated July 1, 

2012 (hereinafter referred to as "AGREEMENT"), this Work Authorization 

authorizes the FIRM to provide services under the terms and conditions set forth 

herein and in the AGREEMENT, which is incorporated herein by reference as 

though set forth in full. 

 

The OWNER desires design-build services related to the Improvements to High 

Service Pump 1 & 2, hereinafter referred to as the “Specific Project”. 

 

Section 1 – Terms 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

Section 2 – Scope of Work 

Amendment 1 is reimbursing funds for unspent allowance of $5,000.00 

 

Section 3 – Location 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

Section 4 – Deliverables 

 NO CHANGE. 

 
Section 5 – Time of Performance 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

 

Agenda Page 67



 

  

 

Section 6 – Method and Amount of Compensation 

This Amendment No. 1 to Work Authorization 137 decreases the $89,120.00 

contract value by $-5,000.00, to a new final contract amount of $84,120.00. 

 
Section 7 – Application for Progress Payment 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

Section 8 – Responsibilities 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

Section 9 – Insurance 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

Section 10 – Level of Service 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

Section 11 – Indemnification 

 NO CHANGE. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment to a Work Authorization, consisting of 

three (3) pages has been caused fully executed on behalf of the FIRM by its duly 

authorized officer, and the OWNER has the same to be duly name and in its behalf, 

effective as of the date herein above written. 

 

Agenda Page 68



 

  

 

 

_____________________________ 

Signature of Witness 

 

_____________________________ 

Printed name of Witness 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

_________________________________ 

Signature of President 

 

__________________________________ 

Printed Name of President 

 

_________________________________ 

Date 

Approved as to form and legality 

 

_________________________________ 

District Counsel 

State of Florida 

County of Palm Beach 

 

The foregoing instrument was 

acknowledged before me on this 

 

2nd day of December, 2019 by  

 

Troy L. Lyn 

who is personally known to me OR 

produced __________ as identification. 

 

____________________________ 

Signature of Notary  

FIRM 

 

Globaltech, Inc. 
 

Company 

 

_____________________________________ 

Signature 

Troy L. Lyn, Executive Vice President  

Name and Title (typed or printed) 

 

December 2, 2019 

Date 

 

Agenda Page 69


	Board Letter
	2 - November 18, 2019 Minutes
	4 - Financials, November 2019
	5B - Permit 2020-1
	6 - Resolution 2020-5, Modifying W&S for School District Facilities
	7 - Hold Harmless and Indemnification Agreement
	8A - WA#170
	8B - Amendment #1 to WA #137



